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PART I — FINANCIAL INFORMATION ITEM I — FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STRATUS MEDIA GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

 
  June 30,  December 31, 
  2012  2011 
  (Unaudited)    

ASSETS         
         
Current assets         

Cash and equivalents  $ 42,934  $ 98,449 
Accounts receivable   71,667   – 
Prepaid expenses and deposits   138,337   87,502 
Total current assets   252,938   185,951 

         
Property and equipment, net   96,476   78,135 
Goodwill and intangible assets   3,359,466   3,359,466 
Acquisition deposit   –   50,000 

Total assets  $ 3,708,880  $ 3,673,552 
         

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' DEFICIT         
         
Current liabilities         

Accounts payable  $ 1,052,945  $ 789,021 
Deferred salaries   813,039   – 
Accrued interest   1,015,121   716,718 
Other accrued expenses and other liabilities   2,585,405   1,541,315 
Loans payable to officers and a director   105,245   184,163 
Rent liability for facilities no longer occupied   452,041   – 
Notes payable   2,752,999   555,000 
Total current liabilities   8,776,795   3,786,217 

         
Commitments and contingencies         
         
Shareholders' deficit         

Series C 10% Preferred Stock, $0.001 par value: 1,000,000 shares authorized, 0 shares outstanding   –   – 
Series D 10% Preferred Stock, $0.001 par value: 500,000 shares authorized,18,999 shares outstanding   19   19 
Series E 5% Preferred Stock, $0.001 par value: 10,000 shares authorized;8,475 and 8,500 shares issued

and outstanding   8   9 
Common stock, $0.001 par value:  200,000,000 shares authorized 89,230,561 and 88,157,055 shares

issued and outstanding   89,231   88,157 
Additional paid-in capital   42,886,643   41,964,908 
Accumulated deficit   (48,049,851)   (42,196,523)
Total Stratus shareholders' deficit   (5,073,950)   (143,430)
Non-Controlling interest   6,035   30,765 
Total shareholders' deficit   (5,067,915)   (112,665)

Total liabilities and shareholders' deficit  $ 3,708,880  $ 3,673,552 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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STRATUS MEDIA GROUP, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(UNAUDITED)

 
  Three Months Ended June 30,   Six Months Ended June 30,  

  2012  2011  2012  2011 
             
             
Revenues  $ 71,666  $ –  $ 231,208  $ – 
Cost of revenues   6,451   –   234,953   – 
Gross profit   65,215   –   (3,745)   – 
                 
Operating expenses                 

General and administrative   1,299,808   1,119,244   2,762,495   1,999,024 
Warrants and options   193,917   381,979   434,153   883,105 
Legal and professional services   1,004,285   542,123   1,574,690   822,213 
Depreciation and amortization   9,878   13,380   19,758   26,759 
Total operating expenses   2,507,888   2,056,726   4,791,096   3,731,101 

                 
Loss from operations   (2,442,673)   (2,056,726)   (4,794,841)   (3,731,101)
                 
Other (income)/expenses                 

Other (income)/expenses   760,696   –   760,696   – 
Interest expense   171,217   88,836   297,791   128,839 
Total other expenses   931,913   88,836   1,058,487   128,839 

                 
Net loss  $ (3,374,586)  $ (2,145,562)  $ (5,853,328)  $ (3,859,940)
                 
                 
Basic and diluted loss per share  $ (0.04)  $ (0.03)  $ (0.07)  $ (0.06)
                 
Basic and diluted weighted-average common shares   88,182,285   71,161,702   88,953,297   68,704,527 

 
 
 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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STRATUS MEDIA GROUP, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
(UNAUDITED)

 
  Six Months Ended June 30,  
  2012  2011 
       
Cash flows from operating activities:         

Net loss  $ (5,853,328)  $ (3,859,940)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:         
Depreciation and amortization   19,758   26,759 
Warrants and options expense   434,153   381,979 
Stock issued for services   170,000   – 
Increase / (decrease) in:         
Accounts receivable   71,667   (53,500)
Deposits and prepaid expenses   50,835   (388,515)
Acquisition deposit   50,000   – 
Accounts payable   263,924   (274,301)
Deferred salaries   813,039   (53,399)
Accrued interest   298,403   128,839 
Rent liability for facilities no longer occupied   452,041   – 
Other accrued expenses and liabilities   975,994   (257,271)
Net cash used in operating activities   (2,253,514)   (4,349,349)

         
Cash flows from investing activities:         

Capital expenditures   –   (81,578)
Advances to acquisition targets   –   (842,487)
Net cash used in investing activities   –   (924,065)
         

Cash flows from financing activities:         
Payments on loans payable to officers and a director   –   (441,068)
Proceeds/(Payments) on notes payable, net   2,197,999   (371,508)
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock   –   9,406,051 
Proceeds from issuance of common stock   –   2,545,000 
Net cash provided by financing activities   2,197,999   11,138,475 

         
Increase/(Decrease) in cash and equivalents   (55,515)   5,865,061 
         
Cash and equivalents, beginning of period   98,449   – 
         
Cash and equivalents, end of period  $ 42,934  $ 5,865,061 
         
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:         

Cash paid during the period for interest  $ –  $ – 
Cash paid during the period for income taxes  $ –  $ – 

 
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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STRATUS MEDIA GROUP, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011 (UNAUDITED) and DECEMBER 31, 2011
 

1.  Business
 

On March 14, 2008, pursuant to an Agreement and Plan of Merger dated August 20, 2007 between Feris International, Inc. (“Feris”) and Pro Sports
& Entertainment, Inc. (“PSEI”), Feris issued 49,500,000 shares of its common stock for all of the issued and outstanding shares of PSEI, resulting in PSEI
becoming a wholly-owned subsidiary of Feris and the surviving entity for accounting purposes (“Reverse Merger”).  In July 2008, Feris’ corporate name was
changed to Stratus Media Group, Inc. (“SMDI,” “Stratus” or the “Company”).

 
PSEI, a California corporation, was organized on November 23, 1998 and specializes in sports and entertainment events it owns, operates, manages,

markets and sells in national markets.  PSEI acquired the business of Stratus Rewards, LLC (“Stratus Rewards”) in August 2005 and Stratus Rewards is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of PSEI.  Stratus Rewards is a credit card rewards program using the Visa card platform that offers a luxury rewards redemption
program, including private jet travel, premium travel opportunities, exclusive events and luxury merchandise.   In May 2010, the Company entered into an
agreement with a private bank in Switzerland for it to be the processing bank for Stratus Rewards in Europe.

   
ProElite, Inc. (“PEI”) is a subsidiary of the Company.  PEI specializes in the operation and management of Mixed Martial Arts events.  

 
2.  Going Concern
 

The Company has suffered losses from operations and without additional capital, lacks liquidity to meet its current obligations.  The Company had a
net loss for 2011 of $15,837,168 and a net loss of $5,853,328 for the six months ended June 30, 2012.  As of June 30, 2012, the Company had negative
working capital of $8,523,857 and accumulated deficit of $48,049,851.  Unless additional financing is obtained, the Company will not be able to continue as a
going concern.  Because of the lack of working capital, the Company has ceased operations and furloughed its employees.

 
The financial statements were prepared on a going concern basis which contemplates the realization of assets and the settlement of liabilities in the

normal course of business.  The financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of asset carrying amounts
or the amount and classification of liabilities that might result if the Company be unable to continue as a going concern.

 
3.  Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies
 
Basis of Presentation
 

The financial statements were prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”),
pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”).  The unaudited balance sheet at June 30, 2012 consolidates the
accounts of PEI.  All significant intercompany balances were eliminated in consolidation.  

 
Use of Estimates

 
The preparation of our consolidated financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect

the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities in our consolidated financial statements
and accompanying notes. Although these estimates are based on our knowledge of current events and actions we may undertake in the future, actual results
may differ from such estimates and assumptions.

 
Event Revenues
 

Event revenue consists of ticket sales, participant entry fees, corporate sponsorships, advertising, television broadcast fees, athlete management,
concession and merchandise sales, charity receipts, commissions and hospitality functions. The Company recognizes admissions and other event-related
revenues when the events are held in accordance with SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) 104. Revenues received in advance and related direct expenses
pertaining to specific events are deferred until the events are actually held.
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Stratus White Visa Card

 
Stratus White (formerly Stratus Rewards), the Company’s affiliate redemption credit card rewards program, is expected to generate revenues from

transaction fees generated by member purchases using the card, initiation fees and annual membership fees. Revenue is recognized when transaction fees are
received and membership fees are amortized and recognized ratably over the twelve-month membership period from the time of receipt.

 
Cash Equivalents

 
We consider all highly liquid investments purchased with maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
 

Accounts Receivable
 
Accounts receivable arise principally from royalties from television networks for pay-per-view presentations.
 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
 
Our financial instruments include cash and equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, notes payable and accrued liabilities. The carrying

amounts of financial instruments approximate fair value due to their short maturities.
 

Property and Equipment
 
Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. We record depreciation using the straight-line method over the following

estimated useful lives:
 

Equipment 3 – 5 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Software 3 years
Leasehold improvements Lesser of lease term or life of improvements
 
Goodwill and Intangible Assets
 

Intangible assets consist of goodwill from certain events and the Stratus White Visa Card we acquired. Goodwill is the excess of the cost of an
acquired entity over the net amounts assigned to tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed. We apply the provisions of FASB ASC Topic
350 Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, which requires allocating goodwill to each reporting unit and testing for impairment using a two-step approach.
 

The Company purchased several events that are recorded on the Company’s balance sheet as intangible assets with a value at the consideration paid
for such assets, which generally include licensing rights, naming rights, merchandising rights and the right to hold such event in particular geographic
locations.  There was no goodwill assigned to any of these events and the value of the consideration paid for each event is considered to be the value for each
related intangible asset.   Each event has separate accounts for tracking revenues and expenses and a separate account to track the asset valuation.

 
A portion of the consideration used to purchase the Stratus White Visa Card program was allocated to specific assets, as disclosed in the footnotes to

the financial statements, with the difference between the specific assets and the total consideration paid for the program being allocated to goodwill.
 
The Company reviews the value of intangible assets and related goodwill as part of its annual reporting process, which generally occurs in February

or March of each calendar year.  Between valuations, the Company conducts additional tests if circumstances warrant such testing.  For example, if the
Company was unable to secure the services of any sponsoring banks, the Company would then undergo a thorough valuation of the intangible assets related to
its Stratus White Visa Card program.

 
To review the value of intangible assets and related goodwill, the Company compares discounted cash flow forecasts with the amounts of the assets

on the balance sheet.
 
The events are forecasted based on historical results for those events, adjusted over time for the assumed synergies expected from discounts from

purchases of goods and services from a number of events rather than from each event on its own, and for synergies resulting from the expected ability to
provide sponsors with benefits from sponsoring multiple events with a single point of contact.

  
These forecasts are discounted at a range of discount rates determined by taking the risk-free interest rate at the time of valuation, plus premiums for

equity risk and small companies in general, and factors specific to the Company and its business.
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If the Company determines the discount factor for cash flows should be increased, or the event will not be able to begin operations when planned, it

is possible the amounts for the intangible assets currently on the balance sheet could be reduced or eliminated, which could result in a maximum charge to
operations equal to the current carrying value of the intangible assets of $3,359,466.

 
Research and Development

 
Research and development costs not related to contract performance are expensed as incurred. We did not incur any research and development

expenses for 2011 or the six months ended June 30, 2012.
 

Capitalized Software Costs
 
We did not capitalize any software development costs during 2011 or the six months ended June 30, 2012. Costs related to the development of new

software products and significant enhancements to existing software products are expensed as incurred until technological feasibility has been established and
are amortized over three years.
 
Valuation of Long-Lived Assets
 

We account for long-lived assets in accordance with the provisions of FASB ASC Topic 360 Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets, which requires that long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangibles be reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets is measured by comparing the carrying amount
of an asset to future undiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be
recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds their fair value. Assets to be disposed of by sale are reflected at the
lower of their carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell.

 
Net Loss Per Share

 
We compute net loss per share in accordance with FASB ASC Topics 260 Earnings Per Share.  Basic per share data is computed by dividing loss

available to common stockholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period. Diluted per share data is computed by dividing
loss available to common stockholders by the weighted average shares outstanding during the period increased to include, if dilutive, the number of additional
common share equivalents that would have been outstanding if potential common shares had been issued using the treasury stock method. Diluted per share
data would also include the potential common share equivalents relating to convertible securities by application of the if-converted method.

 
The effect of common stock equivalents (which include outstanding warrants and stock options) are not included for the six months ended June 30,

2012 or 2011, as they are antidilutive to loss per share.
 

Stock-Based Compensation
 
We follow FASB ASC Topic 718 Share Based Payment, using the modified prospective transition method. New awards and awards modified,

repurchased or cancelled after January 1, 2006 trigger compensation expense based on the fair value of the stock option as determined by the Black-Scholes
option pricing model. We amortize stock-based compensation for such awards on a straight-line method over the related service period of the awards taking
into account the effects of the employees’ expected exercise and post-vesting employment termination behavior.

 
We account for equity instruments issued to non-employees in accordance with the provisions of FASB ASC Topic 718.
 
The risk-free interest rate is based on U.S. Treasury interest rates, the terms of which are consistent with the expected life of the stock

options.   Future option grants will be calculated using expected volatility based upon the average volatility of our common stock.
 

Advertising
 
We expense the cost of advertising as incurred. Such amounts have not historically been significant to our operations.
 

Income Taxes
 

The Company utilizes FASB ASC Topics 740-10 and 740-30 Accounting for Income Taxes, which requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of events that were included in the financial statements or tax returns. Under this method, deferred income
taxes are recognized for the tax consequences in future years of differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their financial reporting amounts
at each year-end based on enacted tax laws and statutory tax rates applicable to the periods in which the differences are expected to affect taxable income.
Valuation allowances are established, when necessary, to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized. The provision for income taxes
represents the tax payable for the period and the change during the period in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements
 

In June 2011, FASB issued ASU 2011-05, Comprehensive Income (ASC Topic 220): Presentation of Comprehensive Income. Under the
amendments in this update, an entity has the option to present the total of comprehensive income, the components of net income and the components of other
comprehensive income either in a single continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separate but consecutive statements. Under both options,
an entity is required to present each component of net income along with total net income, each component of other comprehensive income along with a total
for other comprehensive income and a total amount for comprehensive income. In a single continuous statement, the entity is required to present the
components of net income and total net income, the components of other comprehensive income and a total for other comprehensive income, along with the
total of comprehensive income in that statement. In the two-statement approach, an entity is required to present components of net income and total net
income in the statement of net income. The statement of other comprehensive income should immediately follow the statement of net income and include the
components of other comprehensive income and a total for other comprehensive income, along with a total for comprehensive income. In addition, the entity
is required to present on the face of the financial statements reclassification adjustments for items that are reclassified from other comprehensive income to
net income in the statement(s) where the components of net income and the components of other comprehensive income are presented. The amendments in
this update should be applied retrospectively and are effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2011.
The Company evaluated this pronouncement and determined that it is not applicable to the Company’s financial presentation at this time.
 

In September 2011, FASB issued ASU 2011-08 Intangibles—Goodwill and Other (Topic 350), which requires that a company should first examined
the facts and circumstances for each event or business to determine if it was more likely than not that an impairment had occurred. If this examination
suggested it was more likely that an impairment had occurred, the company then compares discounted cash flow forecasts related to the asset with the stated
value of the assets on the balance sheet. The Company adopted this accounting standard for the year ended December 31, 2011 and utilized it in the analysis
for impairment of intangible assets.

 
On July 27, 2012, the FASB issued ASU 2012-02, Intangibles-Goodwill and Other (Topic 350) - Testing Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for

Impairment.  The ASU provides entities with an option to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether events or circumstances indicate that it is more
likely than not that the indefinite-lived intangible asset is impaired.  If an entity concludes that it is more than 50% likely that an indefinite-lived intangible
asset is not impaired, no further analysis is required.  However, if an entity concludes otherwise, it would be required to determine the fair value of the
indefinite-lived intangible asset to measure the amount of actual impairment, if any, as currently required under US GAAP. The ASU is effective for annual
and interim impairment tests performed for fiscal years beginning after September 15, 2012.  Early adoption is permitted. The adoption of this pronouncement
will not have a material impact on our financial statements.
 
 4.  Litigation
 

In March 2011, four of our shareholders filed an action in Superior Court of California, in Santa Barbara County (lead plaintiff is Howell Douglas
Wood (“Wood”)), against us, our Chief Executive Officer at that time (“CEO”), Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”) and its outside directors. The complaint
alleges violations of the California Corporations Code relating to the issuance of securities to the plaintiffs, fraud, breach of fiduciary duty, breach of contract,
and breach of the covenant of good faith and fair dealing relating to the handling of requests by the plaintiffs to sell their shares. The complaint seeks
unspecified compensatory and punitive damages, recovery of attorney fees and costs and certain equitable relief. We believe that the claims are without merit
and have been aggressively defending the action. The Company is planning on filing an appropriate motion to counter the operative complaint (which is the
third amended complaint). A trial has been set for April 15, 2013.
 

In November 2011, 12 additional shareholders filed an action in Superior Court of California, in Santa Barbara County (lead plaintiff is Jeffrey
Tuttle), against us, our CEO, CFO and its outside directors. This complaint was filed by the same law firms as the Wood complaint, and is similar to the Wood
complaint.  As with the Wood complaint, the Tuttle complaint alleges violations of the California Corporations Code relating to the issuance of securities to
the plaintiffs, fraud, breach of fiduciary duty, breach of contract, and breach of the covenant of good faith and fair dealing relating to the handling of requests
by the plaintiffs to sell their shares. The complaint seeks unspecified compensatory and punitive damages, recovery of attorney fees and costs and certain
equitable relief. We believe that the claims are without merit and have been aggressively defending the action. The Company is planning on filing an
appropriate motion to counter the operative complaint (which is the second amended complaint). By order of the Court, this matter has been consolidated with
the Wood matter for purposes of trial, which has been set for April 15, 2013.
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In September 2011, Maier & Company, Inc., filed a lawsuit against the Company and PSEI for alleged breach of a consulting agreement.  In

November of 2011, a default judgment was entered for $117,165 against both the Company and PSEI.  In January of 2012, the Company and PSEI filed a
motion to set aside the default and default judgment.  That motion was granted, and the Company and PSEI filed an answer to the complaint.  The parties then
entered into an agreement to stay discovery or other activity until the parties conduct a mediation. The parties have reached an agreement in principle to settle
this matter, subject to reduction to mutually agreeable settlement documents, and the parties are in the process of preparing appropriate settlement documents.
The Company anticipates that this matter will be dismissed in the near term.
 

In February 2012, Maverick Apparel Printing, LLC, filed a lawsuit against the Company for alleged breach of a contract for the provision of goods,
and seek $25,694, plus interest, fees and costs.  The Company filed an answer to the complaint.  The parties have reached an agreement in principle to settle
this matter, subject to reduction to mutually agreeable settlement documents, and the parties are in the process of preparing appropriate settlement documents.
The Company anticipates that this matter will be dismissed by September 30, 2012.

 
In April 2012, Ned Sands filed a lawsuit against the Company for alleged discrimination based on religion and age in an employee termination, as

well as fraud in inducing him to join the company.  The plaintiff has filed his second amended complaint, which adds as additional defendants a current and
former officer of the Company. The Company anticipates filing a response to the complaint shortly. The Company has not yet been required to respond to the
complaint.  A trial has been set for June of 2013.
 
5.  Acquisition of Stratus White Visa Card
 

In accordance with the Asset Purchase Agreement dated August 15, 2005, by and between the Company and Stratus White LLC (“Stratus Purchase
Agreement”), the Company acquired the business of Stratus White, a credit card rewards program.
 

The total consideration for this acquisition was $3,000,000, with Stratus entering into a note payable of $1,000,000 and issuing 666,667 common
shares valued at $2,000,000. The note is payable in eight quarterly equal payments over a 24 month period, with the first payment due upon completion of the
first post-public merger funding of a minimum of $3,000,000.
 

The Stratus Purchase Agreement included the transfer to the Company of tangible personal property such as computers and all intellectual property,
goodwill associated therewith, licenses and sublicenses.  Stratus White had at least $1.4 million of computer hardware and at least $0.2 million of computer
software, all of which should have been transferred to the Company pursuant to the Stratus Purchase Agreement.  These computer and software assets were
not included in the accounting for the acquisition of Stratus White by Pro Sports and the value of the computer hardware and software not received was
allocated to goodwill.  The owner of Stratus White received notice on May 15, 2006 that if he did not deliver this hardware and software within 30 days, that
the amount of consideration he was entitled to would be reduced by at least the $1,000,000 amount of the note, if not an additional $1,000,000 value in the
common stock issued as consideration.  The owner responded on June 2, 2006 that his former law firm owned the computer hardware and software and he did
not have the authority to release these items to the Company.
 

Given this situation and the expiration for the statute of limitations, the Company wrote off this liability as of December 31, 2011.
 

The results of operations of the business acquired were included in the Company’s Statements of Operations from the date of acquisition.
Depreciation and amortization related to the acquisition were calculated based on the estimated fair values and estimated useful lives for property and
equipment and an independent valuation for certain identifiable intangible assets acquired.
 

Effective May 14, 2010, the Company entered into a Co-branded Card Agreement (the “Agreement”) with Cornèr Banca SA (the “Bank”), located in
Lugano, Switzerland.  Under the Agreement, the parties agreed to jointly launch a co-branded consumer card payment solution targeted at high net worth
individuals and a co-branded commercial payment solution targeted at small and mid-sized businesses.  The cards, to be issued by the Bank, will include a
loyalty rewards program.  The cards are targeted to residents of Europe.  The initial term of the Agreement is five years.  The Company, among other things,
will be responsible for marketing and administration of, and expenses relating to, the rewards program.  The Bank will be responsible for issuing the
cards.  The Company will receive a share of purchase transactions generated by a card holder and membership and initiation fees.
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6. Receivable from former Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
 

Pursuant to an investigation conducted in 2012 directed by the Company’s Board of Directors, it was determined that Paul Feller, the Company’s
former Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, received $640,000 in December 2010, net of a commission, in connection with a sale of the Company’s
common stock he arranged with an outside investor. This sale was fulfilled with issuance of 2,540,000 shares of common stock issued directly by the
Company. While Mr. Feller provided the Company with $557,650 of these funds in 2010 and 2011, he was repaid $564,363 during 2011, the net of which was
$6,713 and was recorded as a reduction in the loan amount due to him as of June 30, 2011. Accordingly, the Company recorded a gross receivable of
$640,000 from Mr. Feller in connection with this transaction. This receivable is presented net of $398,790 of accrued salary due to Mr. Feller as of December
31, 2011, $115,000 of commissions Mr. Feller has stated were also paid in this transaction and $126,210 of business expenses. The net effect of this
receivable and the offsets is zero as of June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011. This receivable is subject to revision if Mr. Feller submits proper
documentation regarding business expenses or other amounts due to him. Mr. Feller resigned from the Company on June 28, 2012.
 
7.  Property and Equipment
 

Property and equipment were as follows:
 

  
June 30, 

2012  
December 31,

2011 
Computers and peripherals  $ 97,660  $ 97,660 
Office machines   49,370   49,370 
Automobile   38,100   – 
Furniture and fixtures   79,484   79,484 
   264,614   226,514 
Less accumulated depreciation   (168,138)   (148,379)
  $ 96,476  $ 78,135 
 

For the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, depreciation was $19,758 and $4,054, respectively.
 
8.  Goodwill and Intangible assets
 

Goodwill and intangible assets of the Company were as follows:
 

  
June 30, 

2012   
December 31,

2011 
Intangible Assets       
Events       

Beverly Hills Concours  $ 2,500  $ 2,500 
Santa Barbara Concours d'Elegance   53,000   53,000 
Cour Tour/Action Sports Tour   100,000   100,000 
Freedom Bowl   190,000   190,000 
Maui Music Festival   5,000   5,000 
Total - Events   350,500   350,500 

         
Goodwill         

ProElite   1,935,621   1,935,621 
Stratus Visa White Card   1,073,345   1,073,345 
Total Goodwill   3,008,966   3,008,966 

Total Goodwill and Intangible Assets  $ 3,359,466  $ 3,359,466 
 

In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 350 Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, the Company’s intangible assets, other than the purchased licensed
technology and the membership list for Stratus, are considered to have indefinite lives and are therefore no longer amortized, but rather are subject to annual
impairment tests. The Company’s annual impairment testing date is December 31, but the Company monitors the facts and circumstances for all intangible
properties and will record impairment if warranted by adverse changes in facts and circumstances.  
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9.  Other accrued expenses and other liabilities
 

Other accrued expenses and other liabilities consisted of the following:
 

  
June 30,

2012  
December 31,

2011 
Professional fees  $ 969,767  $ 494,767 
Payroll related   825,983   640,208 
Estimated damage liability that may not be covered by insurance   300,000   – 
Accrued board fees   162,497   – 
Consultant fees   154,839   227,178 
Accrued legal judgments   90,732   90,732 
Travel expenses   70,339   38,546 
Other   11,248   49,884 
  $ 2,585,405  $ 1,541,315 

 
The Estimated rent liability for facilities no longer occupied was determined by accruing 12 months of rent at each of the Company’s three former

facilities, which the Company has either vacated or planned to vacate as of June 30, 2012. The Estimated damage liability that may not be covered by
insurance was determined based on a property damage estimate related to leaks from a broken pipe at a Company facility that was occupied at the time.

 
10.  Loans payable to officers and a director
 

The Loans payable to officers and directors are as follows:
 

  
June 30,

2012   
December 31,

2011 
       
Former president and director, interest at 9.5%  $ -  $ 78,918 
An officer, non-interest bearing   50,245   50,245 
An officer, interest at 5.0% if not repaid on timely basis   55,000   55,000 
  $ 105,245  $ 184,163 

 
In connection with the action described in footnote 6, the loan balance for the former president and director was reduced to zero as of June 30, 2012

following his resignation on June 28, 2012.
 
11.  Notes payable
 

Notes payable are as follows:
 

  
June 30, 

2012  
December 31, 

2011 
Notes payable from ProElite to various individuals dated October 20, 2011 with maturity of July 20,
2012, plus interest at xx%, convertible into common stock of ProElite at noteholder's election.  These
notes are currently in default.  Secured by the assets of ProElite.  $ 1,063,000  $ 415,000 

Note payable to a shareholder upon the earlier of completion of $1,000,000 in funding, or May
24,2012, plus interest at 0.19%, secured by the assets of ProElite.  This note is in default   1,000,000   – 

Notes payable to three holders dated May 11, 2012 with maturity of the earlier of November 11, 2012
or when a finacing is completed of $2,000,000 or more, plus interest at 10%, secured by the assets of
the Company   350,000   – 

Notes payable to one holder dated April 4, 2012 with maturity on October 4, 2012, plus interest at
10%. Unsecured.   249,999   – 

Note payable to a shareholder dated January 14, 2005, with maturity of May 14, 2005, plus interest at
10%.  Unsecured.  This note is currently in default.   70,000   70,000 

Note payable to a shareholder dated February 1, 2005 with maturity of June 1, 2005, plus interest at
10%.  Unsecured.  This note is currently in default.   10,000   10,000 

Note payable to non-shareholder.  Payable on demand and does not bear interest, unsecured.   10,000   60,000 
  $ 2,752,999  $ 555,000 
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On April 4, 2012, SMDI issued a promissory note for $249,999. This note bears interest at 10% with principal and interest due on October 4, 2012.

Until the note is paid, the holder has the right to convert some or all of the principal balance of the note into the Company’s common stock at $0.30 per share.
In consideration of the loan to the Company, the Company issued a five-year warrant to purchase 833,330 shares of the Company’s common stock at $0.40
per share and a five-year warrant to purchase from the Company 12,500,000 shares of the common stock of PEI owned by the Company at an exercise price
of $0.02 per share. The warrant shares are before the anticipated 1:25 reverse split of the Common Stock of PEI. All of the underlying shares related to this
note carry “piggyback” registration rights.
 

On May 11, 2012, SMDI issued three promissory notes in the aggregate principal amount of $350,000. These notes bear interest at 10% with
principal and interest due on the earlier of November 11, 2012, or the receipt by the Company of $2,000,000 or more of gross proceeds from the sale of equity
securities. These notes are secured by the assets of the Company on a pari passu basis with the holders of the Company’s Series E Preferred Stock.
 
12.  Shareholders’ Deficit
 
Series C 10% Preferred Stock
 

During 2011, holders of the Company's Series C 10% Preferred Stock (“Series C”) converted all of their Series C into common stock. Each share of
Series C sold for $30, can be converted at any time into 20 shares of common stock and has voting rights of 20 shares of common stock.  In connection with
the issuance of Series C, the Company issued 124,990 warrants with a life of five years to purchase a share of common stock for $2.00 per share.  The Series
C has liquidation preference over common stock at a liquidation value of $30 and pays a cumulative dividend of 10% per year, payable on July 31 and
December 31of each year that the Series C is outstanding.  Interest payments may be made in cash or in common stock at the discretion of the Company.  The
Series C automatically convert into 20 shares of common stock when the closing price for a share of common stock is $5.00 or above and the average daily
trading volume for the 10 previous trading days is above 200,000 shares.  Given the losses recorded by the Company, the stock equivalents related to the
Series C are not included in the calculation of earnings per share since the effect of such inclusion would be antidilutive.
 

Since the Series C contains an embedded conversion feature, the Company performed an analysis of the Series C under ASC 815 “Derivatives and
Hedging.”  This analysis determined that the embedded conversion feature was not required to be bifurcated and accounted separately from the Series C
because the economic risks and characteristics of the embedded conversion feature were clearly and closely related to the economic risks and characteristics
of the host contract Series C, namely the risks of the common stock.  The value of the beneficial conversion feature (“BCF”) was $26,945, which was charged
to equity at the time of issuance and was not included in the calculation of earnings per share.  The BCF was calculated as the difference of the fair value of
the conversion price and the intrinsic value of the preferred shares.
 

The Series C contains a share adjustment provision that provides for additional shares to be issued if the 30-day volume weighted average price of
the Company’s common stock (“VWAP”) is between $1.00 and $2.00 180 days after the purchase of Series C.  If the VWAP is above $2.00, no action is
taken.  If the VWAP is between $1.00 to $2.00, additional shares are issued to the holder such that the total of the number of common shares issuable upon
conversion, which is the number of Series C shares times 20 (“Conversion Shares”), plus the additional shares together equals the VWAP price equals the
Conversion Shares times $2.00.  If the VWAP is below $1.00 the number of additional shares are calculated as if the price were $1.00, not the actual
VWAP.  Once this 180-day period passes and the Company has issued the appropriate shares, if any, then Price Protection provisions of this Agreement will
expire and the Company will be completely released from any future claims by the Purchaser related to this share adjustment provision.
 

The Company determined that derivative accounting for the embedded conversion and the share adjustment features were  not required pursuant to
ASC 815-10-15-74 because the features and the shares are indexed to the Company’s own stock under ASC 815-40-15 (EITF Issue 07-5); the features can be
classified in shareholders’ equity under ASC 815-40 (EITF Issue 00-19, paragraphs 1-11)  and that Series C is classified as a conventional convertible so the
embedded conversion feature can be classified in stockholders’ equity under ASC 815-40 (Issue 00-19, paragraphs 12-32).  The determination was made by
the Company that the Series C is a conventional convertible because the freestanding warrant is indexed to the company’s own stock under ASC 815-40-15
(EITF Issue 07-5); the freestanding warrant is classified in shareholders’ equity under ASC 815-40 (Issue 00-19, paragraphs 1-32); and the financial
instrument does not include embedded puts and/or calls or other features that require bifurcation from the host contract under ASC 815.
 

As of December 31, 2011, all Series C Preferred Stock had been converted into common stock.
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Series D 10% Preferred Stock
 

The Company had 18,999 shares of its Series D 10% Preferred Stock (“Series D”) outstanding as of June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011.  Each
share of Series D sold for $30, can be converted at any time into 60 shares of common stock and has voting rights of 60 shares of common stock.  In
connection with the issuance of Series D, the Company issued warrants to purchase 179,970 shares of common stock.  The warrants have a life of five years
to purchase a share of common stock for $1.00 and expire between November 2015 and April 2016.  The Series D has liquidation preference over common
stock at a liquidation value of $30 and pays a cumulative dividend of 10% per year, payable on July 31 and December 31 of each year that the Series D is
outstanding.  Interest payments may be made in cash or in common stock at the discretion of the Company.  The Series D automatically convert into 60 shares
of common stock when the closing price for a share of common stock is $5.00 or above and the average daily trading volume for the 10 previous trading days
is above 200,000 shares.  Given the losses recorded by the Company, the stock equivalents related to the Series D are not included in the calculation of
earnings per share since the effect of such inclusion would be antidilutive.
 

Since the Series D contains an embedded conversion feature, the Company performed an analysis of the Series C under ASC 815 “Derivatives and
Hedging.”  This analysis determined that the embedded conversion feature was not required to be bifurcated and accounted separately from the Series D
because the economic risks and characteristics of the embedded conversion feature were clearly and closely related to the economic risks and characteristics
of the host contract Series D, namely the risks of the common stock.  The value of the BCF was $26,945 which was charged to equity at the time of issuance
and was not included in the calculation of earnings per share.  The BCF was calculated as the difference of the fair value of the conversion price and the
intrinsic value of the preferred shares.
 

The Series D contains a share adjustment provision that provides for additional shares to be issued if the thirty-day volume weighted average price of
the Company’s common stock (“VWAP”) is between $0.50 and $1.00 180 days after the purchase of Series D.  If the VWAP is above $1.00, no action is
taken.  If the VWAP is between $0.50 to $1.00, additional shares are issued to the holder such that the total of the number of common shares issuable upon
conversion, which is the number of Series D shares times 60 (“Conversion Shares”), plus the additional shares together equals the VWAP price equals the
Conversion Shares times $1.00.  If the VWAP is below $0.50 the number of additional shares are calculated as if the price were $0.50, not the actual
VWAP.  Once this 180-day period passes and the Company has issued the appropriate shares, if any, then Price Protection provisions of this Agreement will
expire and the Company will be completely released from any future claims by the Purchaser related to this share adjustment provision.  The price protection
provisions have expired.
 

The Company determined that derivative accounting for the embedded conversion and the share adjustment features was not required pursuant to
ASC 815-10-15-74 because these features are indexed to the Company’s own stock under ASC 815-40-15 (EITF Issue 07-5); the features can be classified in
shareholders’ equity under ASC 815-40 (EITF Issue 00-19, paragraphs 1-11)  and that Series D is classified as a conventional convertible so the features can
be classified in stockholders’ equity under ASC 815-40 (Issue 00-19, paragraphs 12-32).  The determination was made by the Company that the Series D is a
conventional convertible because the freestanding warrant is indexed to the company’s own stock under ASC 815-40-15 (EITF Issue 07-5); the freestanding
warrant is classified in shareholders’ equity under ASC 815-40 (Issue 00-19, paragraphs 1-32); and the financial instrument does not include embedded puts
and/or calls or other features that require bifurcation from the host contract under ASC 815.
 

As of June 30, 2012 there were 18,999 shares of Series D Preferred Stock outstanding.   
 

Series E 5% Preferred Stock
 

On May 24, 2011, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) with eight investors (collectively, the
“Investors”) pursuant to which the Company sold the Investors 8,700 shares of a new series of convertible preferred stock designated as Series E Convertible
Preferred Stock (the “Series E”), the terms of which are set forth in the Certificate of Designations of Series E Preferred Stock (the “Certificate”), for $1,000
per share, or $8,700,000 in the aggregate. As of June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, there were 8,475 and 8,500 shares of Series E outstanding.
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In connection with the sale of the Preferred Shares, the Company also agreed to issue to the Investors (a) warrants (“A Warrants”) to purchase up to

one additional share of Common Stock for each share of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of the Preferred Shares, and (b) warrants (“B Warrants”) to
purchase up to .50 additional shares of Common Stock for each share of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of the Preferred Shares. The Warrants are
exercisable for five years commencing on the date of first issuance and are exercisable only for cash if there is an effective registration statement covering the
resale of the shares issuable upon exercise of the Warrants. In the absence of such a registration statement, the Warrants are exercisable for cash or on a
cashless basis at the option of the holder thereof. The exercise price of the A Warrant is $0.30 per share and the B Warrant has an exercise price of $0.30 per
share, subject in each case to full ratchet anti-dilution protection. The exercise price of the A Warrant was originally $0.65 and the exercise price of the B
Warrant was originally $1.00 but were adjusted pursuant to the full ratchet anti-dilution protection when $249,999 of notes were issued on April 4, 2012 that
contained a $0.30 conversion feature.
 

Pursuant to the Certificate, the Preferred Shares bear a dividend of 5%, payable quarterly in cash, or, if the dividend shares are registered for resale,
in shares of the Company’s Common Stock. The effective conversion rate for the Preferred Shares was originally is $0.40 per share of Common Stock, but
has been adjusted to $0.30 pursuant to the full ratchet anti-dilution protection mentioned above. The Preferred Shares have voting rights on an as-converted to
Common Stock basis, with the Investors (subject to certain exceptions) having the right to elect two members to the Company’s Board of Directors (“BOD”)
for so long as at least 50% of the total number of Preferred Shares purchased pursuant to the Purchase Agreement are outstanding, and the right to elect one
member to the Company’s BOD for so long as least 25% but less than 50% of the total number of Preferred Shares issued pursuant to the Purchase
Agreement are outstanding. The Company is required to redeem any unconverted Preferred Shares on the fifth anniversary of the date of first issuance of the
Preferred Shares, and has the right to require conversion at any time if the average daily trading value for any 20 consecutive trading days exceeds $250,000
and the weighted average price per share is at least $2.50 for each of those 20 consecutive trading days.
 

To secure the Company’s obligation to redeem the Preferred Shares, the Company entered into a Security Agreement dated May 24, 2011, pursuant
to which the Company agreed to grant the holders of the Preferred Shares a first priority security interest in all of its assets.
 

The Company filed a registration statement with the SEC covering the resale of the shares (a) issuable upon conversion of the Preferred Shares or
exercise of the Warrants, (b) issued as dividends payable in shares of Common Stock pursuant to the Certificate, and (c) issuable upon exercise of the
Placement Agent Warrants. This registration statement was declared effective on February 13, 2012. Upon the occurrence of certain events set forth in the
Purchase Agreement, including the failure to timely file the registration statement or have the registration statement timely declared effective, the Company
will pay to the Investors cash of 1% of the aggregate purchase price of the Series E Preferred Stock and Warrants for each 30-day period during such default;
provided, however, that the payments will not exceed 10% of the aggregate purchase price.

 
As of June 30, 2012 there were 8,475 shares of Series E Preferred Stock outstanding.   

 
Common Stock
 

During the six months ended June 30, 2012, the Company did not raise funds from the issuance of common stock.
 
Stock Options
 

During the six months ended June 30, 2012, the Company cancelled 4,660,994 options for employees whose employment had been terminated and
granted 2,300,000 options to Jerold Rubinstein, the Company’s new Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer on June 28, 2012, pursuant to an
employment contract. These options have a strike price of $0.35, which is the closing price of the Company’s common stock on the day of grant, a five-year
life and vest monthly over a twelve-month period unless the employment contract is terminated for any reason, at which time the options vest in full. The
Black Scholes value of these options was $448,800 which is being amortized over the twelve month vesting period starting July 1, 2012; accordingly, no
expense was recognized for the three and six months ended June 30, 2012.  The following assumptions were used for the Black Scholes calculation to
determine this expense:
 
Estimated fair value of underlying common stock  $0.35 
Remaining life   5.0 
Risk-free interest rate   0.69% 
Expected volatility   80% 
Dividend yield   – 
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The following table sets forth the activity of our stock options:

 
   Options Outstanding    Options Exercisable 

   
Options

Outstanding    

Range of
Exercise

Prices    

Weighted
Average

Remaining
Life in
Years    

Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price    
Options

Exercisable    

Weighted
Average

Remaining
Life in
Years    

Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price  
As of December 31, 2010   10,269,852   $0.14 - $3.50   2.4  $ 0.94   8,512,684   2.0  $ 0.94 
Cancelled   (3,110,000)   –   –  $ 0.43   (3,110,000)   –  $ 0.00 
Exercised                             
Granted   5,010,000  $0.54   5.0  $ 0.54   3,355,000   5.0  $ 0.54 
As of December 31, 2011   12,169,852   $0.14 - $1.50   3.2  $ 0.49   8,757,684   3.2  $ 0.40 
Cancelled   (7,376,329)   –   –   –   (4,660,994)   –   – 
Exercised   –   –   –   –   –   –   – 
Granted   2,300,000  $0.35   5.0  $ 0.35   –   –   – 
As of June 30, 2012   7,093,523    $0.35 -$0.54   3.7  $ 0.47   4,096,690   2.8  $ 0.52 
 
 
Warrants
 

During the six months ended June 30, 2012, the Company issued five-year warrants to purchase 833,330 shares at $0.40 in connection with a note
payable for $249,999. During this period, the Company issued warrants to purchase 3,000,000 shares of its common stock at $0.30 with a five-year life in
connection with a non-exclusive agreement with an investment bank for advisory services related to funding and capital structure. In addition, this investment
bank received warrants to purchase 1,000,000 shares of ProElite common stock at $0.35 with a five-year life. The Black Scholes value of the warrants issued
to the investment bank was $1,274,000, which is being recognized over a twelve month period starting June 1, 2012; accordingly, $106,167 was recognized as
an expense during the three and six months ended June 30, 2012.  The following assumptions were used for the Black Scholes calculation to determine this
expense:
 
Estimated fair value of underlying common stock  $0.55 
Remaining life   5.0 
Risk-free interest rate   0.74% 
Expected volatility   84% 
Dividend yield   – 

 
A summary of the warrants:
 

    Warrants Outstanding     Warrants Exercisable 

   
Warrants

Outstanding   

Range of
Exercise

Prices   

Weighted
Average

Remaining
Life in
Years   

Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price   
Warrants

Exercisable   

Weighted
Average

Remaining
Life in
Years   

Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price 
As of December 31, 2010   2,472,676   $1.00 - $2.00   4.4  $ 1.37   2,472,676   4.4  $ 1.37 
Exercised   –   –   –   –   –   –   – 
Granted   57,057,569   $0.65 - $1.00   4.5  $ 0.75   57,057,569   4.5  $ 0.75 
As of December 31, 2011   59,530,245   $0.65 - $2.00   3.5  $ 2.00   59,530,245   3.5  $ 2.00 
Exercised   –   –   –   –   –   –   – 
Ratchet-down impact   56,991,667  $0.30   –  $ 0.30   56,991,667   –  $ 0.30 
Granted   3,833,330   $0.30 - $0.40   4.9  $ 0.32   3,000,000   4.9  $ 0.32 
As of June 30, 2012   120,355,242   $0.30 - $2.00   3.9  $ 0.40   119,521,912   3.9  $ 0.40 
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The exercise price of the A Warrant for Series E Preferred was originally $0.65 and the exercise price of the B Warrant for Series E Preferred was

originally $1.00, but both warrants were adjusted pursuant to the full ratchet anti-dilution protection when $249,999 of notes were issued on April 4, 2012 that
contained a $0.30 conversion feature.

 
Calculations of the ratchet-down impact:
 

    Original   After Ratchet Down  

   Shares  x    Strike  =    

Aggregate
Exercise

Price    Shares  x    Strike  =    

Aggregate
Exercise

Price  
                         
Series A warrants   21,750,000  $ 0.65  $ 14,137,500   47,125,000  $ 0.30  $ 14,137,500 
Series B warrants   10,875,000  $ 1.00  $ 10,875,000   36,250,000  $ 0.30  $ 10,875,000 
Placement agent warrant   3,600,000  $ 0.65  $ 2,340,000   7,800,000  $ 0.30  $ 2,340,000 
Broker-dealer warrant   1,000,000  $ 0.65  $ 650,000   2,166,667  $ 0.30  $ 650,000 
Advisory warrant   750,000  $ 0.65  $ 487,500   1,625,000  $ 0.30  $ 487,500 
   37,975,000           94,966,667         
                         

 Additional warrants from ratchet-down     56,991,667          
 
13.  Commitments and contingencies
 
Office space
 

On May 1, 2009, the Company entered into a lease for approximately 1,800 square feet of office space in Santa Barbara, California for use as its
executive offices.  This lease was amended on July 21, 2009 and expires on December 31, 2013 with a three-year renewal term available at an initial rent plus
common area charges of $5,767 per month. The Company has provided notice to the landlord of this property that it will vacate this space as of August 31,
2012 and accrued a year of rent payments as of June 30, 2012 to provide for the Company’s estimated liability before a new tenant takes over the lease
liability.
 

On August 1, 2011, we entered into a lease for approximately 7,000 square feet of office space in Los Angeles, California.  The lease continues
through November 30, 2014.  Initially, the lease had a fixed monthly rent of $19,326, subject to annual increases of 3%.  The Company was not required to
pay a fixed monthly rent for months 2 through 5.  Prior to this, the Company was leasing the same office space on a month-to-month basis. The Company
vacated this property in the quarter ended June 30, 2012 and accrued a year of rent payments as of June 30, 2012 to provide for the Company’s estimated
liability before a new tenant takes over the lease liability.
 

On November 1, 2011, we entered into a lease approximately 3,000 square feet of office space in Santa Barbara, California for use by our operating
units.  This lease expires on October 31, 2014 with two additional three-year renewal terms available.  The initial rent plus common area charges are $7,157
per month. The Company vacated this property in the quarter ended June 30, 2012 and accrued a year of rent payments as of June 30, 2012 to provide for the
Company’s estimated liability before a new tenant takes over the lease liability.
 

Rent expense for the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 was $170,278 and $46,458, respectively.
 

Employment and Consulting Contracts
 

Effective June 28, 2012, Jerold Rubinstein, an existing director of the Company and Chairman of the Company’s Audit Committee, was elected by
the Company’s board of directors as Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer and a director of the Company’s subsidiaries. The Board of Directors
of PEI elected him as Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. Under the terms of an employment agreement dated June 28, 2012, Mr. Rubinstein
will receive an annual salary of $250,000 per year and will continue to serve on the Company’s board of directors and as Chairman of the Company’s Audit
Committee and shall continue to receive his compensation for such services. The term of this agreement is six months with an automatic six month extension
unless the Company provides written notice of non-renewal 30 days prior to the end of the initial six-month term. Mr. Rubinstein has been granted options to
purchase 2,300,000 shares of the Company’s common stock at $0.35 per share, which was the closing price of the Company’s common stock on the day of
option grant. These options vest monthly over a twelve-month period. In the event the Company does not renew the second six month period, Mr. Rubinstein
resigns or the Company terminates Mr. Rubinstein’s employment without cause, all options will immediately vest and the executive will receive all unpaid
salary for the full twelve month period.
 

17



 

 
On June 28, 2012, Paul Feller, the Company’s former Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer, resigned from all positions with the

Company and its subsidiaries, including PEI. In connection therewith, pursuant to a Separation and Release Agreement, the Company and Mr. Feller entered
into a new Consulting Agreement for a term of two years at an annual compensation of $250,000, subject to the Company raising at least $2,000,000 in
funding within four months of June 28, 2012. Under the Consulting Agreement, Mr. Feller agreed to provide services in the area of business development,
fund-raising and the evaluation of asset/event acquisitions to be done at the discretion of the Board of Directors.
 

Set forth below is information concerning our known contractual obligations as of June 30, 2012 that are fixed and determinable by year:
 

     

Six Months
ended

December 31,   
Twelve Months 

ended December 31,   After  
  Total   2012   2013   2014   2014  
Payroll, payroll tax and

personnel  $ 1,394,880  $ 1,394,880  $ –  $ –  $ – 
Employee and consulting

contracts   1,670,661   1,026,494   519,167   125,000   – 
Notes payable   2,752,999   2,752,999   –   –   – 
Legal judgments   90,732   90,732   –   –   – 
Rent obligations   452,041   226,021   226,020   –   – 
  $ 6,361,313  $ 5,491,126  $ 745,187  $ 125,000  $ – 

 
14.  Segment Information
 

Each event and the Stratus Reward program is considered an operating segment pursuant to ASC 280 since each is budgeted separately and results of
each event and the Stratus program are tracked separately to provide the chief operating decision maker information to assess and manage each event and the
Stratus Program.

 
The characteristics of the Stratus Visa White Card program are different than the events, so that operating segment is considered a reporting

segment.  The events share similar economic characteristics and are aggregated into a reporting segment pursuant to paragraph 17 of ASC 280.  All of the
events provide entertainment and the logistics and production processes and methods for each event are similar:  sponsorship sales, ticket and concession
sales, security, stages, public address systems and the like.  While the demographic characteristics of the audience can vary by event, all events cater to
consumer entertainment.

 
A summary of results by segment is as follows:

 
  (Amounts in $000)  
  As of/for the Six Months ended June 30, 2012   As of /for the Six Months ended June 30, 2011  

  

Stratus
Credit
Card   

ProElite
Events   Other   Total   

Credit
Card   Events   Other   Total  

Revenues  $ -  $ 231  $ -  $ 231  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ - 
Cost of revenues   -   235   -   235   -   -   -   - 

Gross loss   -   (4)   -   (4)   -   -   -   - 
Deprec. & Amort   -   -   20   20   30   -   -   30 

Segment loss   -   (4)   (20)   (24)   (30)   -   -   (30) 
Operating expenses   175   578   4,018   4,771   175   -   3,526   3,701 
Other expenses   -   38   1,020   1,058   -   -   129   129 

Net loss  $ (175)  $ (620)  $ (5,058)  $ (5,853)  $ (205)  $ -  $ (3,655)  $ (3,860) 
                                 
Assets  $ 1,073  $ 1,924  $ 712  $ 3,709  $ 1,216  $ 2,124  $ 9,127  $ 12,467 
Liabilities  $ 200  $ 2,085  $ 6,492  $ 8,777  $ 1,000  $ 484  $ 2,329  $ 3,813 
 
15.  ProElite, Inc.
 

Effective October 21, 2009, the Company entered into a Strategic Investment Agreement with PEI pursuant to which PEI sold to the Company
shares of PEI’s Series A Preferred Stock (the “Preferred Shares”). The transaction closed on June 14, 2011. The Preferred Shares are convertible into the
Common Stock of PEI. The amount of shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion on a cumulative basis is equal to 95% of the sum of (a) the issued
and outstanding shares of PEI as of the closing plus (b) any shares of PEI Common Stock issued after the closing upon exercise or conversion of any
derivative securities of PEI outstanding as of the closing, subject to any adjustment for stock splits, stock dividends, recapitalizations etc. and, in all cases,
after giving effect to the shares issuable upon conversion of the Preferred Shares. The purchase price of the Preferred Shares was $2,000,000. At the close, all
of the previous directors of PEI resigned and the board of directors of PEI consists of two designees of the Company and one designee of PEI. Paul Feller, the
Company’s Chief Executive Officer at that time, became PEI’s Chief Executive Officer. Certain present and former key PEI executives continued with PEI.
Upon the close of the transaction, the Company recorded goodwill of $1,935,621. The Company also recorded non-controlling interest of $105,263 due to
negative equity of PEI at June 30, 2011. The Company has consolidated the balance sheet of PEI as of June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011. The results of
operations of PEI for the three months and six months ended June 30, 2012 were consolidated into the Company’s results of operations.
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The pro forma financial information presented below show the consolidated operations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2011 of the

Company as if the PEI acquisition had occurred as of January 1, 2011:
 

  

Three Months 
Ended 

June 30, 2011  

Six Months 
Ended 

June 30, 2011 
Revenues  $ 112,000  $ 259,000 
Gross profit   112,000   259,000 
         
Loss from operations   (2,498,313)   (4,443,263)
Interest and other expense   120,530   160,533 
Net loss  $ (2,618,843)  $ (4,603,796)
         
Basic and diluted loss per share  $ (0.04)  $ (0.07)
 
16. Related Party Transactions
 

Pursuant to an investigation conducted in 2012 directed by the Company’s Board of Directors, it was determined that a Paul Feller, the Company’s
former Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, received $640,000 in December 2010, net of a commission, in connection with a sale of the Company’s
common stock he arranged with an outside investor. This sale was fulfilled with issuance of 2,540,000 shares of common stock issued directly by the
Company. While Mr. Feller provided the Company with $557,650 of these funds in 2010 and 2011, he was repaid $564,363 during 2011, the net of which was
$6,713 and was recorded as a reduction is the loan amount due to him as of June 30, 2011. Accordingly, the Company recorded a gross receivable of
$640,000 from Mr. Feller in connection with this transaction. This receivable is presented net of $398,790 of accrued salary due to him as of December 31,
2011, $115,000 of commissions Mr. Feller has stated were also paid in this transaction and $126,210 of business expenses. The net effect of this receivable
and the offsets is zero as of June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011. This receivable is subject to revision if Mr. Feller submits proper documentation regarding
business expenses or other amounts due to him. Mr. Feller resigned from the Company on June 28, 2012.

 
Effective July 1, 2011, each board member is entitled to an annual payment of $50,000, with the chairman of the audit committee receiving an

additional $100,000 per annum and the chairman of the compensation committee receiving an additional $50,000 per annum. Mr. Rubinstein received a grant
of 450,000 shares of restricted common stock that vest over a 36 month period and an additional grant of 450,000 shares of restricted common stock as
chairman of the audit committee that vest over a 36 month period. Mr. Golenberg received a grant of 450,000 shares of restricted common stock as chairman
of the compensation committee that vests over a 36 month period that started in July 2011. On December 28, 2010, the Board of Directors elected to cancel a
total of 1,550,000 options granted to Messrs. Cross and Dunleavy and Golenberg in 2009 for board service and to Mr. Golenberg in 2009 and 2010 as
chairman of the audit committee, and replace those options with grants of 540,833 shares of restricted stock, which was equal to 50% of the number of vested
options as of July 1, 2011. These grants vest one-third on January 1, 2012, one-third on January 1, 2013 and one-third on January 1, 2014. Pursuant to these
grants, Mr. Cross received a grant of 162,500 shares of restricted stock, of which 54,167 shares vested on January 1, 2012; Mr. Dunleavy received a grant of
130,000 shares of restricted stock, of which 43,333 shares vested on January 1, 2012; and Mr. Golenberg received a grant of 248,333 shares of restricted
stock, of which 82,778 shares vested on January 1, 2012.
 
17. Subsequent Events
 

In July 2012, SMDI issued two promissory notes in the aggregate principal amount of $50,000. These notes bear interest at 10%, with principal and
interest due on the earlier of November 11, 2012, or the receipt by the Company of $2,000,000 or more of gross proceeds from the sale of equity securities.
These notes are secured by the assets of the Company on a pari passu basis with the holders of the Company’s Series E Preferred Stock.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
 
Forward-Looking Statements
 

This report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934. These forward-looking statements are subject to certain risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from
historical results or anticipated results, including those set forth under “Certain Factors That May Affect Future Results” below and elsewhere in, or
incorporated by reference into, this report.

 
In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terms such as “may,” “intend,” “might,” “will,” “should,” “could,” “would,”

“expect,” “believe,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “predict,” “potential,” or the negative of these terms, and similar expressions are intended to identify
forward-looking statements. When used in the following discussion, the words “believes,” “anticipates” and similar expressions are intended to identify
forward-looking statements. Such statements are subject to certain risks and uncertainties, which could cause actual results to differ materially from those
projected. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date hereof. The forward-
looking statements in this report are based upon management’s current expectations and belief, which management believes is reasonable. These statements
represent our estimates and assumptions only as of the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, and we undertake no obligation to publicly release the
result of any revisions to these forward-looking statements, which may be made to reflect events or circumstances after the date hereof or to reflect the
occurrence of unanticipated events.
  

The following discussion relates to the operations of Stratus and should be read in conjunction with the Notes to Financial Statements.
 
Description of Business
 
Overview
 

On March 14, 2008, pursuant to an Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as August 20, 2007 between Feris International, Inc. (“Feris”) and Pro
Sports & Entertainment, Inc. (“PSEI”), Feris issued 49,500,000 shares of its common stock for all of the issued and outstanding shares of PSEI, resulting in
PSEI becoming a wholly-owned subsidiary of Feris and the surviving entity for accounting purposes (“Reverse Merger”).  In July 2008, Feris’ corporate
name was changed to Stratus Media Group, Inc. (“Company”, “Stratus”, or “SMDI”).  
 

PSEI, a California corporation, was organized on November 23, 1998 and specializes in sports and entertainment events that it owns, operates,
manages, markets and sells in national markets.  PSEI acquired the business of Stratus White, LLC (“Stratus White”) in August 2005 and Stratus White is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of PSEI.  Stratus White is a credit card rewards program that uses the Visa card platform to offers a unique luxury rewards
redemption program, including private jet travel, premium travel opportunities, exclusive events and luxury merchandise.   The card program was renamed
from Stratus White to Stratus White in 2011 to reduce the emphasis on the rewards program and increase the emphasis on the other card membership benefits.
 

In June 2011, the Company acquired 95% ownership in ProElite, Inc., a New Jersey corporation (“ProElite or “PEI”), that organizes and promotes
mixed martial arts (“MMA”) matches.  PEI’s common stock is available on the OTC Market (“Pink Sheets”) under the symbol PELE.PK.  In June 2011,
SMDI acquired Series A Convertible Preferred Stock of PEI which is convertible into shares of PEI’s Common Stock equal to approximately 95% of PEI’s
outstanding Common Stock. The Preferred Shares have voting rights on an as-converted basis. SMDI intends to convert the Preferred Shares as soon as
practicable after PEI effects a reverse split of 1:25.  All Share information and the exercise price of the PEI Warrant assumes the reverse split and is on a post-
reverse split basis.
 
Current Status
 

As a result of the lack of working capital, Stratus has no events currently scheduled pending receipt of sufficient funds from financings which it is
currently pursuing.  In the absence of obtaining sufficient funds, Stratus will be unable to schedule or reschedule some or all of its events and implement its
business plan.

 
Stratus Business Plan
 

The business plan of Stratus is to operate the Stratus White program and to own and realize all available event  revenue  rights from
tickets/admissions, corporate sponsorship, television, print, radio, Internet, merchandising, and hospitality. With additional funding, the objective of
management is to build a profitable business by implementing an aggressive acquisition growth plan to acquire quality companies, build corporate
infrastructure, and increase organic growth.  The plan is to leverage operational efficiencies across an expanded portfolio of events to reduce costs and
increase revenues.  The Company’s management is currently reviewing all the Company’s existing businesses to determine which businesses to activate and
when, depending on the availability of capital.
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Stratus plans to use a “roll up” strategy, targeting sports and live entertainment events and companies that are independently owned and operated or

being divested by larger companies with the plan to aggregate them into one large leading live entertainment company.  The strategy is to purchase these
events for approximately four to six times Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization (“EBITDA”) of the events, with the expectation
that the combined EBITDA of the Company from these events will receive a higher valuation multiple in the public markets.
 

Assuming the availability of capital, Stratus is targeting acquisitions of event properties.  The goal is to aggressively build-up a critical mass of
events, venues and companies that allow for numerous cross-event synergies.  Specifically:
 
 — On the expense side, to share sales, financial and operations resources across multiple events, creating economies of scale, increasing the

Company’s purchasing power, eliminating duplicative costs, and bringing standardized operating and financial procedures to all events,
thus increasing the margins of all events.

   
 — On the revenue side, to present advertisers and corporate sponsors an exciting and diverse menu of demographics and programming that

allows sponsors “one stop shopping” rather than having to deal with each event on its own, and in so doing, convert these sponsors into
“strategic partners.”

 
With these core operational synergies and subject to available capital, Stratus intends to (1) expand its acquisition strategy of additional live sports

and entertainment events and companies, (2) create entirely new event properties on the forefront of the “experience economy” and thus tap into people’s
lifestyle passions, and (3) cross-promote the Stratus White Visa card with these events to enhance the results of the card and event businesses.
 

The business plan of Stratus is to provide integrated event management, television programming, marketing, talent representation and consulting
services in the sports and other live entertainment industries.  Stratus’s event management, television programming and marketing services may involve:
 

 — Managing sporting events, such as college bowl games, golf tournaments and auto racing team and events;
 — Managing live entertainment events, such as music festivals, car shows and fashion shows;
 — Producing television programs, principally sports entertainment and live entertainment programs; and
 — Marketing athletes, models and entertainers and organizations.

 
The following discussion relates to the operations of Stratus and should be read in conjunction with the Notes to Financial Statements.

 
Description of our Revenues, Costs and Expenses
 
Revenues
 

Our past revenues included event revenues from ticket sales, sponsorships, concessions and merchandise, which are recorded when the event occurs,
and Stratus revenues from membership fees, fees on purchases and interest income earned on the redemption trust.  Membership fees and related expenses are
amortized over the 12 month period and fees from purchases and interest income are recorded when they occur.

 
Gross Profit (Loss)

 
Our gross profit represents revenues less the cost of revenues. Our event cost of revenues consists of the costs renting the venue, structures at the

venue, concessions, and temporary personnel hired for the event.  
 

Operating Expenses
 

Our selling, general and administrative expenses include personnel, rent, travel, office and other costs for selling and promoting events and running
the administrative functions of the Company.  Legal and professional services are paid to outside attorneys, auditors and consultants are broken out separately
given the size of these expenses relative to selling, general and administrative expenses. Operating expenses also include expenses for impairment of
goodwill, fair value expenses for issuing common stock for consideration less than the number of shares issued valued at market closing price on the day of
issuance, and Black-Scholes expenses for options and warrants.
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Interest Expense

 
Our interest expense results from accruing interest for notes payable and preferred stock.
 

Critical Accounting Policies
 

Goodwill and Intangible Assets
 
Intangible assets consist of goodwill from acquisitions of ProElite and Stratus White Visa Card. Goodwill is the excess of the cost of an acquired

entity over the net amounts assigned to tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed. We apply FASB ASC Topic 350 Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets, which requires allocating goodwill to each reporting unit and testing for impairment using a two-step approach.

 
The Company purchased several events that are recorded on the Company’s balance sheet as intangible assets at the consideration paid for such

assets, which generally include licensing rights, naming rights, merchandising rights and the right to hold such event in particular geographic locations.  There
was no goodwill assigned to any of these events and the value of the consideration paid for each event is considered to be the value for each related intangible
asset before any reductions for impairment.   Each event has separate accounts for tracking revenues and expenses per event and a separate account to track
the asset valuation.

 
A portion of the consideration used to purchase the Stratus Rewards Visa card program was allocated to specific assets, as disclosed in the footnotes

to the financial statements, with the difference between the specific assets and the total consideration paid for the program being allocated to goodwill.
 
The Company reviews the value of intangible assets and related goodwill as part of its annual reporting process, which generally occurs in February

or March of each calendar year.  In between valuations, the Company conducts additional tests if circumstances warrant such testing.  For example, if the
Company was unable to secure the services of any sponsoring banks, the Company would then undergo a thorough valuation of the intangible assets related to
its Stratus Rewards program.

 
To review the value of intangible assets and related goodwill, the Company compares discounted cash flow forecasts with the stated value of the

assets on the balance sheet.
 
The events are forecasted based on historical results for those events, adjusted over time for the assumed synergies expected from discounts from

purchases of goods and services from a number of events rather than from each event on its own, and for synergies resulting from the expected ability to
provide sponsors with benefits from sponsoring multiple events with a single point of contact.

 
These forecasts are discounted at a range of discount rates determined by taking the risk-free interest rate at the time of valuation, plus premiums for

equity risk and small companies in general, factors specific to the Company and the business that range from 10.0% for events to 40% for the Stratus Rewards
Visa card.  The total discount rates ranged from 35% for events to 65% for the Stratus White Visa Card program.  Terminal values are determined by taking
cash flows in year five of the forecast, then applying an annual growth of 2.2% to 4.1% for the next seven years and discounting that stream of cash flows by
the discount rate used for that section of the business.

 
If the Company determines that the discount factor for cash flows should be increased, or the event will not be able to being operations when

planned, it is possible that the values for the intangible assets currently on the balance sheet could be substantially reduced or eliminated, which could result
in a maximum charge to operations of the current carrying value of the intangible assets of $3,359,466.

 
Results of Operations for the Three Months Ended June 30, 2012
 

Revenues
 
Revenues for the three months ended June 30, 2012 (“Current Period”) were $71,666 from a PEI royalty payment compared to $0 for the three

months ended June 30, 2011 (“Prior Period”).   
 

Gross Profit
 
Cost of revenues in the Current Period were $6,451 compared to $0 for the Prior Period and were related to the ProElite event conducted in the first

quarter of 2012. Gross profit was $65,215 for the Current Period compared to $0 for the Prior Period.
 

22



 

 
Operating Expenses

 
Overall operating expenses for the Current Period were $2,507,888, an increase of $451,162, or 22%, from $2,056,726 in the Prior Period.  This

increase was primarily due to a $462,162 increase in legal and professional services resulting from $300,000 of stock issued for consulting services and
$180,000 accrued for management consultants.  This increase in legal and professional services was offset by a $188,062 reduction in warrants and options
expense primarily due to the cancellation of options for directors and replacement with restricted stock grants. General and administrative expenses in the
Current Period increased by $180,564 from the Prior Period, primarily from increased rent and personnel expense.

  
Interest and Other Expense

 
Other expense was $760,696 in the Current Period compared with $0 of other expense in the Prior Period. This increase is related to $452,041 of

estimated rent liability for facilities no longer occupied by the Company and $300,000 potential damage liability for water damage at one of the Company’s
facilities that may not be covered by insurance.

 
Interest expense was $171,217 in the Current Period, an increase of $82,381 from $88,836 in the Prior Period, primarily for interest associated with

the Series E Preferred Stock that was outstanding for three months in the Current Period and one month in the Prior Period, along with interest related to
ProElite notes that were outstanding for three months in the Current Period and no months in the Prior Period.

 
Results of Operations for the Six Months Ended June 30, 2012
 

Revenues
 
Revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2012 (“Current Period”) were $231,208 from ProElite royalty payments and an ProElite event

conducted in the first quarter, compared to $0 for the six months ended June 30, 2011 (“Prior Period”).   
 

Gross Loss
 
Cost of revenues in the Current Period were $234,953 compared to $0 for the Prior Period, related to the ProElite event conducted in the first quarter.

Gross loss was $3,745 for the Current Period compared to $0 for the Prior Period.
 
Operating Expenses

 
Overall operating expenses for the Current Period were $4,791,096, an increase of $1,059,995, or 28%, from $3,731,101 in the Prior Period.  This

increase was primarily due to a $752,477 increase in legal and professional services resulting from $300,000 of stock issued for consulting services, $360,000
accrued for management consultants and $150,000 incurred in consulting for the Perugia International Film Festival, which was originally scheduled for
March but was canceled.  General and administrative expense increased by $763,471, primarily from increased personnel costs of $389,000 related to higher
staffing levels and increased rent of $124,000. These increases in legal and professional services and general and administrative expenses were offset by a
$448,952 reduction in warrants and options expense primarily due to the cancellation of options for directors and replacement with restricted stock grants.

  
Interest and Other Expense

 
Other expense was $760,696 in the Current Period compared with $0 of other expense in the Prior Period. This increase is related to $452,041 of

estimated rent liability for facilities no longer occupied by the Company and $300,000 potential damage liability for water damage at one of the Company’s
facilities that may not be covered by insurance.

 
Interest expense was $297,791 in the Current Period, an increase of $168,952 from $128,839 in the Prior Period, primarily for interest associated

with the Series E Preferred Stock that was outstanding for six months in the Current Period and one month in the Prior Period along with interest related to
ProElite notes that were outstanding for six months in the Current Period and no months in the Prior Period.
 
Liquidity and Capital Resources

 
The report of our independent registered public accounting firm on our financial statements for the year ended 2011 contains an explanatory

paragraph expressing substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern as a result of recurring losses, a working capital deficiency, and
negative cash flows. The financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts or the
amounts and classification of liabilities that would be necessary if we are unable to continue as a going concern.
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The Company is actively pursuing equity capital and is targeting a raise of $10 million or more.  The proceeds raised will be used for operational

expenses, settling existing liabilities, acquisitions and selling expenses.  Due to our history of operating losses and the current credit constraints in the capital
markets, we cannot assure you that such financing will be available to us on favorable terms, or at all.   If we cannot obtain such financing, we will be unable
to schedule or recommence our events and credit card operations, all of which are currently on hold, we may not be able to continue as a going concern, and
we may become unable to satisfy our obligations to our creditors. In such an event we will need to enter into discussions with our creditors to settle, or
otherwise seek relief from, our obligations.
 

On April 4, 2012, SMDI issued a promissory note for $249,999. This note bears interest at 10% with principal and interest due on October 4, 2012.
Until the note is paid, the holder has the right to convert some or all of the principal balance of the note into the Company’s common stock at $0.30 per share.
In consideration of the loan to the Company, the Company issued a five-year warrant to purchase 833,330 shares of the Company’s common stock at $0.40
per share and a five-year warrant to purchase from the Company 12,500,000 shares of the Common Stock of PEI owned by the Company at an exercise price
of $0.02 per share. The warrant shares are before the anticipated 1:25 reverse split of the Common Stock of PEI. All of the underlying shares related to this
note carry “piggyback” registration rights.

 
On May 11, 2012, SMDI issued three promissory notes in the aggregate principal amount of $350,000. These notes bear interest at 10% with

principal and interest due on the earlier of November 11, 2012, or the receipt by the Company of $2,000,000 or more of gross proceeds from the sale of equity
securities. These notes are secured by the assets of the Company on a pari passu basis with the holders of the Company’s Series E Preferred Stock.
 
Cash Flows
 

The following table sets forth our cash flows as of the dates indicated:
 
  Six Months Ended June 30,  
  2012   2011  
Operating activities  $ (2,253,514)  $ (4,349,349)
Investing activities   –   (924,065)
Financing activities   2,197,999   11,138,475 
Net change in cash  $ (55,515)  $ 5,865,061 
  
Operating Activities
 

Operating cash flows for the six months ended June 30, 2012 reflect the net loss of $5,853,328, primarily offset by $3,105,903 of working capital
decreases, particularly an increase in other accrued expenses and liabilities of $1,105,994 and deferred salary for employees who worked during the period
but were not paid of $813,039, $452,041 for rent liability for facilities no longer occupied and a total of $474,153 of non-cash expenses for stock issued for
services and warrants and option expense.

 
Operating cash flows for the six months ended June 30, 2011 reflects the net loss of $3,859,940, primarily offset, in part, by non-cash expenses of

$381,979 for warrant and options expenses and $898,147 of net changes in working capital.
 

 Financing Activities
 
During the six months ended June 30, 2012, we received $2,197,999 in proceeds from notes payable.
 
During the six months ended June 30, 2011, we received $9,406,051 from the issuance of preferred stock, $2,545,000 from the issuance of common

stock and used $441,068 for payments to officers and a director and $371,508 for payments of notes payable.
 

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements
 
We have no off balance sheet arrangements.
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
 
Not applicable
 
ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
 
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
 
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures.
 

The term “disclosure controls and procedures” means controls and other procedures of the Company that are designed to ensure that information
required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files or submits under the Act (15 U.S.C. 78a et seq.) is recorded, processed, summarized and
reported, within the time periods specified in the Commission's rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and
procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files or submits under the Act is accumulated
and communicated to the Company's management, including its principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions,
as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
 

We carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Principal Executive Officer and
Principal Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined) in Exchange Act Rules 13a – 15(c) and 15d –
15(e)).  Based upon that evaluation, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that, as of the end of the period covered in this
report, our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed in reports filed under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the required time periods and is accumulated and communicated to our
management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure
based on the following material weaknesses:

 
1. Lack of segregation of duties and check and balances. 

 
2. Lack of written controls and procedures, particularly with regard to entering into contracts and commitments by the Company.

 
3. Use of an accounting software package that lacks a rigorous set of software and change controls.  While this software is a proven industry standard
and is in widespread use, it allows one person to make significant changes without oversight or approval.

 
4.  Until April 2012, the ability of the Company’s former principal executive officer to set up and approve wire transfers and internal transfers from
the Company’s bank account to the personal bank account of the former principal executive officer at the same bank.

 
Our Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer do not expect that our disclosure controls or internal controls will prevent all error

and all fraud. Although our disclosure controls and procedures were designed to provide reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives, a control system,
no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute assurance that the objectives of the system are met. Further, the design
of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of
the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any,
within the Company have been detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and that breakdowns
can occur because of a simple error or mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented if there exists in an individual a desire to do so. There can be no
assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions.
 
Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
 

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting (“ICFR”) that occurred during the six months ended June 30, 2012 from those
reported in our 2011 Form 10-K that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our ICFR.
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PART II – OTHER INFORMATION
 
ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
 

Not applicable. 
 
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
 

Not applicable.
 
ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS
 

None
 
ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES
 

None.
 
ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
 

Not applicable.  
 
ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION
 

None
 
ITEM 6. EXHIBITS
 
Exhibit No. Exhibit Description
  
10.1 Employment Agreement between Stratus Media Group, Inc. and Jerold Rubinstein dated June 28, 2012
  
31.1 Certification by the Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as adopted

pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
  
31.2 Certification by the Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as adopted

pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
  
32.1 Certification by the Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley

Act of 2002.
  
32.2 Certification by the Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley

Act of 2002.
  
101.INS* XBRL Instance Document

 
101.SCH* XBRL Schema Document
  
101.CAL* XBRL Calculation Linkbase Document
  
101.DEF* XBRL Definition Linkbase Document
  
101.LAB* XBRL Label Linkbase Document
  
101.PRE* XBRL Presentation Linkbase Document
 
 

*Pursuant to Rule 405(a)(2) of Regulation S-T, the Company will furnish the XBRL Interactive Data Files with detailed footnote tagging as Exhibit 101 in an
amendment to this Form 10-Q within the permitted 30-day grace period for the first quarterly period in which detailed footnote tagging is required after the
filing date of this Form 10-Q.
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SIGNATURES
 
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized.
 
 STRATUS MEDIA GROUP, INC.
   
 By: /s/ Jerold Rubinstein
  Jerold Rubinstein
  Principal Executive Officer
   
   
 By: /s/John Moynahan
  John Moynahan
  Principal Financial Officer
   
 Date: August 17, 2012
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit 10.1
 

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (the "Agreement"), dated as of June 28, 2012 between STRATUS MEDIA GROUP, INC., with its principal place
of business at 3 East De La Guerra Street, Santa Barbara, California 93101 (the "Company"), and Jerry Rubinstein (hereinafter referred to as "Executive").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Company is engaged in the business of sports and entertainment event ownership, television broadcasting of events,
product merchandising, marketing, operations, sales, agent, venue and corporate representation and consultancy {the "Business"); and,

WHEREAS, the Company wishes to employ Executive, and Executive wishes to accept such employment, on the terms and conditions set
forth in this Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein and other good and valuable consideration, the
receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1.  EMPLOYMENT. The Company shall employ the Executive and Executive hereby accepts such employment with the Company, upon the
terms and conditions hereinafter set forth for the period beginning on June 28, 2012 and ending on the Termination Date determined pursuant to Section 4
(the "Employment Term").

2.  POSITION AND DUTIES.

(a) During the Employment Term, Executive shall serve as (1) Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer of Stratus
Media Group, and shall report to the Board of Directors, and (2) Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer of ProElite, and shall
report to its Board of Directors. Subject to the direction and control of the Board of Directors of the Company, Executive's duties shall include principal
responsibility for formulation and implementation of the business policies and direction of the Company, employment decisions, financial decisions and
management and oversight of the day-to-day operation of the Business. Executive shall perform such other duties requested by or pursuant to the lawful
direction and control of the Board of Directors of the Company (or a committee thereof) including such services and duties normally commensurate with
Chief Executive Officer. The Executive acknowledges and agrees that he owes a fiduciary duty of loyalty to the Company to discharge his duties and
otherwise act in a manner consistent with the best interests of the Company.

(b) During the Employment Term, the Executive shall devote his reasonable efforts and attention and energies to the performance of his
duties and responsibilities under this Agreement (except for paid time off to which he is entitled pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, illness or
incapacity or activities which do not, in the sole judgment of the Board of Directors (or a committee thereof), interfere or conflict with his duties and
responsibilities in any material respect).
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3.   COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS.

As compensation in full for the services to be rendered by Executive under this Agreement, the Company agrees to compensate Executive as
follows:

(a) During the Employment Term (unless earlier terminated as provided herein), the Company shall pay, and Executive shall accept, an
annualized salary of not less than Two Hundred and Fifty Thousand Dollars ($250,000) ("Base Salary") payable in accordance with the Company's normal
payroll practices and subject to any and all necessary and legal payroll and other deductions.

(b) Executive shall be eligible to participate in those non-salary benefits and programs generally made available to executive employees of
the Company, as are in effect from time to time, including, but not limited to, any health, dental, life insurance, long term disability insurance plan, 401(k) or
other retirement savings plan, and any other employee benefit plan, subject to any and all terms, conditions, and eligibility requirements of said plans or
benefits, as may from time to time be prescribed by the Company. In the event that Executive does not participate in any particular non-salary benefit, he
shall have the right to receive the cash equivalent based upon the cost which would have been incurred by the Company.

(c) Executive shall be entitled to twenty days of paid time off each twelve- month period from the date employment commences under this
Agreement, Executive may carry one hundred and fifty percent (150%) of their annual accrual over to the next calendar year. Please refer to the most current
handbook for all other policies and procedures.

(d) Subject to the financial condition of the Company, Executive shall be entitled to fly business class on all international flights. All
domestic flights to be business class, if so elected. Furthermore, Company will pay or reimburse Executive for 80% percent of his monthly cellular phone
usage chargers.

(e) Upon submission of proper vouchers and evidence, the Company will pay or reimburse Executive for reasonable transportation, hotel,
travel and related expenses incurred by Executive on business trips away from Executive's principal office, and for other business expenses reasonably
incurred by Executive in connection with the business of the Company during the Employment Term, all subject to such limitations and procedures as may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board of Directors of the Company.

(f) Executive shall receive Two Million Three Hundred Thousand options for the Company's common stock with an exercise price of
Thirty Five Cents ($0.35). The options shall vest monthly over the one (1) year term of this agreement. In the event of termination of this agreement for any
reason or a change in control of the Company, the options shall vest completely and immediately.
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(g) Executive shall continue to serve as a member of the board of directors, chairman of the board, and audit committee chairman and
shall continue to receive his compensation for such services.

(h) Executive shall receive compensation in the sum of Twenty Thousand Dollars ($20,000) for his consulting services during May and
June 2012.

(i) During the Employment Term, Executive shall be entitled to receive an automobile allowance of up to $650 per month.

4.  TERMINATION.

(a) The Executive's employment under this Agreement shall be for an initial six (6) month term and shall automatically renew for an
additional (6) months unless written notice of non-renewal is provided by the Company within thirty (30) days of the end of the initial term. In the event of
non-renewal, the termination shall be deemed a "Termination by Non-Renewal". The foregoing notwithstanding, the Executive's employment may also be
terminated by (1) Executive's death or a Disability (an "Involuntary Termination"), (2) by the Board of Directors for Cause (a "Termination for Cause"), (3)
by the Board of Directors for reasons that do not constitute cause (a "Termination Without Cause") or (4) the resignation by the Executive (a "Executive
Resignation").

(b) The effective date of a resignation shall be the date that the written resignation by the Executive is received by the Company; the
effective date of an Involuntary Termination shall be the date of death or, in the event of a Disability, the date specified in a notice delivered to the Executive
by the Company; the effective date of a Termination for Cause shall be the date specified in a notice delivered to the Executive by the Company of such
termination; and the effective date of a Termination Without Cause shall be the date specified in a notice delivered to Executive by the Company of such
termination which effective date shall be no less than thirty (30) days following the date of such notice.

(c) For purposes of this Agreement, "Cause" shall mean those instances in which the Board of Directors (excluding the Executive if the
Executive is a member of the Board at such time) determines in good faith that Executive has (i) intentionally furnished materially false, misleading, or
intentionally failed to provide material information to the Company's Board of Directors that results or could reasonably be expected to result in material
detriment to the Company, (ii) willfully refused or failed to follow the lawful instructions of the Board of Directors with respect to any material matter,
consistent with the terms of this Agreement, which refusal or failure shall not have been cured, if capable of being cured, within 10 days following written
notice thereof; provided, however, that no notice or opportunity to cure shall be required with respect to repeated refusal or failure to follow the lawful
instructions of the Board of Directors, consistent with the terms of this Agreement, (iii) convicted of any act involving moral turpitude (including those
involving fraud, theft or dishonesty by Executive) or any crime (whether felony or misdemeanor) other than traffic violations or other minor offenses that
could not reasonably be expected to have an adverse effect on the Company's business or reputation, (iv) the continued use of alcohol or drugs by the
Executive to an extent that, in the good faith determination of the Board of Directors (excluding the Executive if the Executive is a member of the Board at
such time), such use interferes with performance of the Executive's duties and responsibilities, (v) committed or engaged in any other• material act
constituting or comprising a conflict or interest or cause under applicable law, or (vi) breached his obligations under this Agreement in any material respect,
which breach has materially damaged the Company and, if capable of being cured, shall not have been cured upon 15 days' written notice thereof "Cause" is
not intended to include mere dissatisfaction of the Company or its Board of Directors with the manner in which Executive performs his duties nor the good
faith failure of the Executive to perform his duties successfully.
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(d) For purposes of this Agreement, the term "Disability" shall mean the physical or mental inability of the Executive (1) based upon a
good faith determination by the Board of Directors (excluding the Executive if the Executive is a member of the Board at such time) to substantially perform
all of his duties under this Agreement for a period of ninety (90) consecutive days or longer or for any 90 days in any consecutive 8 month period, or (2) that,
in the opinion of a physician selected by the Board of Directors (excluding the Executive if the Executive is a member of the Board of Directors at such
time), is likely to prevent the Executive from substantially performing all of his duties under this Agreement for more than 90 days in any period of 365
consecutive days.

5.  EFFECT OF TERMINATION.

(a) In the event of a Termination Without Cause, Termination by Non-Renewel, or Executive Resignation, the Executive or his
beneficiaries or estate shall have the right to receive only the following:

(1) The sum of the unpaid portion of the Base Salary through employment term (which shall be deemed to include both the initial
six (6) month term and the optional six (6) month term even if not yet exercised and even in the event of Non-Renewel) as one payment payable within
fourteen (14) days of Termination Without Cause or Executive Resignation.

(2) Reimbursement for any expenses incurred prior to the Termination Date for which the Executive shall not have been
previously reimbursed in accordance with the provisions of Section 3(f) above.

(b) In the event of a Termination for Cause or Involuntary Termination, the Executive or his beneficiaries or estate shall have the right to
receive the following:
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 (1) Reimbursement for any expenses incurred prior to the Termination Date for which the Executive shall not have been
previously reimbursed in accordance with the provisions of Section 3(f) above.

(c) Upon any termination, neither the Executive nor his beneficiaries or estate shall have any further rights under this Agreement or any
rights arising out of this Agreement other than as provided in Section 5(a), (b) and (c) above. The rights of the Executive set forth in this Section 5 are
intended to be the Executive's exclusive remedy for termination and to the greatest extent permitted by applicable law, the Executive waives all other
remedies,

(d) Following any termination, Executive shall reasonably cooperate with Company in all matters relating to the winding up of the
Executive's work on behalf of Company and the orderly transfer of any such pending work and of Executive's duties and responsibilities for Company to
such other person or persons as may be designated by Company in its sole discretion. Executive shall not be entitled to any additional pay or severance in
connection with such cooperation.

6.  NONDISCLOSURE AND NONUSE OF CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION.

The Executive will not disclose, disseminate or use at any time, either during the Employment Term or thereafter, any Confidential Information of
which the Executive is or becomes aware, whether or not such information is developed by him, except to the extent that such disclosure or use is directly
related to and required by the Executive's performance of duties assigned to the Executive by the Company. For purposes of this Agreement, the term
"Confidential Information" shall mean: information that is not generally known to the public and that is used, developed or obtained by the Company in
connection with the Business, including, without limitation, (a) information, observations, procedures and data obtained by the Executive while employed by
the Company concerning the business or affairs of the Company, (b) planned or actual- products or services, (c) costs and pricing structures, customer,
supplier or employee lists, (d) analyses, drawings, photographs and reports, (d) computer software and hardware, including operating systems, applications
and program listings, (e) data bases, (f) accounting and business methods, (g) research and development, and (h) inventions, devices, new developments,
methods, processes, technology and trade secrets (including, without limitation all Work Product). Confidential Information will not include (i) any
information that has been published, through no direct or indirect effort or action by the Executive, in a form generally available to the public prior to the
date the Executive proposes to disclose such information, and (ii) any general expertise, contacts or know-how reflective of Executive's experience as an
executive in the sports management and event field.

7.  INVENTIONS AND PATENTS.

The Executive agrees that all Work Product belongs to the Company The Executive will promptly disclose such Work. Product to the Board of
Directors and perform all actions reasonably requested by the Board to establish and confirm such ownership (including, without limitation, the execution
and delivery of assignments, consents, powers of attorney and other instruments) and to provide reasonable assistance to the Company in connection with the
prosecution of any application for patents, trademarks, trade names, service marks or reissues thereof or in the prosecution or defense of any claims by or
against the Company relating in any way to Work Product, For purposes of this Agreement, the term "Work Product" shall mean all inventions, innovations,
improvements, technical information, systems, software or equipment developments, methods, designs, analyses, drawings, reports, service marks,
trademarks, trade names, logos and all similar or related information (whether patentable or unpatentable) which relates to the Company's actual or
anticipated business, research and development or existing or future products or services and which are conceived, developed or made by the Executive
(whether or not during usual business hours and whether or not alone or in conjunction with any other person, group or entity) while employed by the
Company as they may solely relate to Company's business, together with all patent applications, letters patent, trademark, trade name and service mark
applications or registrations, copyrights and reissues thereof that may be granted for or upon the foregoing in relation to Company's business.
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8.  NON-COMPETE NON-SOLICITATION NON-DISPARAGEMENT.

The Executive acknowledges and agrees with the Company that during the course of the Executive's employment with the Company, the Executive
will have the opportunity to develop relationships with existing employees, customers and other business associates of the Company. Accordingly, the
Executive agrees as follows:

(a) The Executive shall not, directly or indirectly, enter into, engage in, assist, give or lend funds to or otherwise finance, be employed by
or consult with, or have a financial or other interest in, any business which is directly similar to or directly competitive with the Business, whether for himself
or as an independent contractor, agent, stockholder, partner or joint venturer for any other person, group or entity. To the extent that the covenant provided for
in this Section 8(a) may later be deemed by a court to be too broad to be enforced with respect to its duration or with respect to any particular activity or
geographic area, the court making such determination shall have the power to reduce the duration or scope of the provision.

(b) Notwithstanding the foregoing, the aggregate ownership by the Executive of no more than two percent (on a fully-diluted basis) of the
outstanding equity securities of any person, group or entity, which securities are traded on a national securities exchange, quoted on the Nasdaq Stock Market
or other automated quotation system, and which person, group or entity competes with the Company within the Territory shall not be deemed to be a violation
of Section 8(a).

(c) To the extent that the actions herein by Executive would have a material adverse impact on the Company, Executive covenants and
agrees that during the term of his employment and for six months following the Termination Date, the Executive will not, directly or indirectly, either for
himself or for any other person, group or entity (I) solicit any employee, independent contractor or service provider of the Company to terminate or modify
his, her or its employment or other relationship with the Company or employ or retain any person or entity, (2) solicit any customer, licensee or licensor, of
the Company or any service provider to the Company to purchase or provide products or services on behalf of the Executive or such other person, group or
entity that are competitive with the products or services provided by the Company, or (3) disparage the business reputation of the Company, its Board of
Directors or its management team.
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(d) In addition to any other remedies available to Executive under this Agreement or applicable law, in the event that the Company fails to
meet any of its ongoing payment or severance obligations to Executive and such failure continues uncured for ten (10) business days, all of Executive's post-
term obligations under this Section 8 shall terminate.

9.  RETURN OF COMPANY'S PROPERTY UPON TERMINATION.

The Executive shall immediately deliver to the Company at the termination of the Employment Term or at any time the Board of Directors may
request, all Company property (including but not limited to all documents, electronic files/records, keys, records, computer disks, or other tangible or
intangible things that may or may not relate to or otherwise constitute Confidential Information, Work Product, or trade secrets (as defined by applicable law)
that Executive created, used, possessed, or maintained while in the employ of the Company, from whatever source. This provision does not apply to purely
personal documents of Executive, but does apply to business calendars, Rolodexes, customer lists, contact sheets, computer programs, disks, and their
contents, and like information that may contain some personal matters of Executive.

10.  OWNERSHIP OF INTANGIBLES.

All processes, inventions, patents, copyrights, trademarks, and other intangible rights that may be conceived or developed by Executive, either alone
or with others, during the term of Employee's employment, whether or not conceived or developed during Employee's working hours, and with respect to
which the equipment, supplies, facilities, or trade secret information of Employer was used, or that relate at the time of conception or reduction to practice of
the invention to the business of Company or to Company's actual or demonstrably anticipated research and development, or that result from any work
performed by Executive for Company, shall be the sole property of Employer. Employee hereby agrees promptly to disclose to the Company any and all
inventions, discoveries, improvements, trade secrets, formulas, techniques, processes, and know-how, whether or not patentable and whether or not reduced
to practice, made or conceived by Executive, either solely or in conjunction with others, during the period of Employee's employment with Employer, which
related to or result from the actual or demonstrably anticipated business, work, or research in development of Employer, or which result, to any extent, from
use of Employer's premises or property, or are suggested by any task assigned to Employee or any work performed by Executive for or on behalf of
Employer. Executive acknowledges and agrees that all such inventions shall be the sole property of Employer, and Executive hereby assigns to Company's
Employee's entire right and interest in all the inventions; provided, however, that such assignment does not apply to any invention which qualifies fully
under the provision of section 2870 of the California Labor Code. Executive shall execute all documents, including patent applications and assignments,
required by Company to establish Company's rights under this Section.
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11.  MISCELLANEOUS.

(a) This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of Executive and his heirs and personal representatives, and the
Company and its successors, assigns and legal representatives. This Agreement and the responsibilities/benefits hereunder are personal to Executive and are
not assignable or transferable by Executive.

(b) The Company shall have the right to offset against amounts due to Executive hereunder, any amounts owed by Executive to Company,
including any advances.

(c) This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Company and Executive with respect to the subject matter hereof and
supersedes any and all previous agreements or understandings between Executive and the Company concerning the subject matter hereof. This Agreement
may not be changed or amended without the prior written consent of both of the parties hereto.

(d) All notices hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed given on the fifth day after mailing through the United States mail,
certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, or by overnight delivery to the persons listed below or to such other person(s) and/or addresses as
may be designated from time to time in writing:

(e) This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

(f) Any waiver by either party of any breach of any of the terms of this Agreement shall not be considered a waiver of any subsequent
breach.

(g) In the event that any provision of this Agreement is held to be unenforceable, then such enforceability shall in no way affect the other
terms and provisions of this Agreement which shall remain in full force and effect.

(h) The captions herein are for the convenience of the parties and are not to be construed as part of the terms of this Agreement.

(i) This Agreement may be amended, modified or supplemented only by written agreement of the parties hereto, which agreement shall
have been duly authorized and approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.

(j) The failure of the Company at any time or from time to time to require performance of any of Executive's obligations under this
Agreement shall in no manner affect the Company's right to enforce any provision of this Agreement at any subsequent time, and the waiver by the Company
of any right arising out of any breach shall not be construed as a waiver of any right arising out of any subsequent breach.
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(k) Executive acknowledges that the consideration furnished by the Company in this Agreement, the sufficiency and adequacy of which is
hereby acknowledged, is in addition to anything of value, if any, to which Executive may already be entitled.

(i) Executive and the Company agree that any and all disputes, claims, or causes of action, arising from or relating to this Agreement and
Executive's employment with the Company or the termination thereof, including but not limited to claims based on contract, tort or statutory duty or
prohibition, including any prohibition against discrimination or harassment, or claims for breach of fiduciary duty and misappropriation of trade secrets, shall
be resolved, to the fullest extent permitted by law, by final, binding and confidential arbitration in Los Angeles County, California, conducted by Judicial
Arbitration and Mediation Services, Inc. ("JAMS"), or its successor, under the then applicable rules of JAMS. You acknowledge that by agreeing to this
arbitration procedure, both you and the Company waive the right to resolve any such dispute through a trial by jury or judge or by administrative proceeding.
Pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure Section 1283.1(b), the parties hereby incorporate the discovery provisions of California Code of Civil
Procedure Section 1283.05. The arbitrator shall issue a written arbitration decision including the arbitrator's essential findings and conclusions and a
statement of the award. The arbitrator shall be authorized to award any and all remedies, including but not limited to damages that you or the Company
would be entitled to seek in a court of law. In addition, in the event of any dispute with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement, the prevailing party
shall be entitled to all of its costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees and costs, incurred in resolving or settling the dispute. These costs and
expenses shall be in addition to any other damages to which the prevailing party may be entitled. The Company shall pay all JAMS arbitration fees in excess
of the amount of court fees which would have been required if the dispute were decided in a court of law.

(m) Executive represents and warrants that he has read and fully understands the terms and provisions hereof, and has had an
opportunity to review this Agreement with his own legal counsel (not employed by Company), and has executed this Agreement based upon
Executive's own judgment and advice of independent legal counsel (if sought).

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have signed and sealed this Agreement as of the day and year first above written.

COMPANY:
  
 STRATUS MEDIA GROUP, ENC.
  
 By:  /s/ Tim Boris
 Tim Boris

 
EXECUTIVE:

  
 By:  /s/ Jerry Rubinstein
 Jerry Rubinstein

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9



 

 Exhibit 31.1
 

CERTIFICATIONS OF CEO PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a) or RULE 15d-14(a)
 
I, Jerold Rubinstein, certify that
 
1. I have reviewed this Report on Form 10-Q of Stratus Media Group, Inc. (“Registrant”)
 
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the

statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

  
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the

financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
  
4. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in

Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the Registrant and have:

 
 a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision to

ensure that material information relating to the Registrant, including its subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared.

   
 b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our

supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

   
 c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the

effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
   
 d. Disclosed in this report any change in the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the  Registrant’s most recent

fiscal quarter (the Registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

 
5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the

Registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the Registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 
 a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably

likely to adversely affect the Registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
   
 b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the Registrant’s internal control

over financial reporting.
 
 Date:  August 17, 2012  
   
 /s/ Jerold Rubinstein  
 Name: Jerold Rubinstein  
 Title:  Chief Executive Officer  
 
 
 



 

Exhibit 31.2
 

CERTIFICATIONS OF CFO PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a) or RULE 15d-14(a)
 
I, John Moynahan, certify that
 
1. I have reviewed this Report on Form 10-Q of Stratus Media Group, Inc. (“Registrant”)
 
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the

statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

  
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the

financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
  
4. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in

Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the Registrant and have:

 
 a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to

ensure that material information relating to the Registrant, including its subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

   
 c. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our

supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

   
 c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the

effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
   
 d. Disclosed in this report any change in the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the  Registrant’s most recent

fiscal quarter (the Registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

 
5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the

Registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the Registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 
 a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably

likely to adversely affect the Registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
   
 b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the Registrant’s internal control

over financial reporting.
 
 
 Date:  August 17, 2012  
   
 /s/ John Moynahan  
 Name: John Moynahan  
 Title:  Chief Financial Officer  
 



 

Exhibit 32.1
 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES OXLEY ACT OF 2002
 
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as enacted by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the undersigned officer of Stratus Media Group, Inc. (the
“Company”) hereby certifies, to such officer’s knowledge:
 

(1) This Report on Form 10-Q for the six months ended June 30, 2012 (“Report”) fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d)
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
 

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of operations of the
Company.
 
Date:  August 17, 2012
 
/s/ Jerold Rubinstein
 

 Name: Jerold Rubinstein
Title: Chief Executive Officer
 
The foregoing certification is being furnished solely to accompany the Report pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, and is not being filed for purposes of Section 18
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and is not to be incorporated by reference into any filing of the Company, whether made before or after
the date hereof, regardless of any general incorporation language in such filing.
 

 



 

Exhibit 32.1
 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES OXLEY ACT OF 2002
 
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as enacted by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the undersigned officer of Stratus Media Group, Inc. (the
“Company”) hereby certifies, to such officer’s knowledge:
 

(1) This Report on Form 10-Q for the six months ended June 30, 2012 (“Report”) fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d)
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
 

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of operations of the
Company.
 
Date:  August 17, 2012
 
/s/ John Moynahan
 

Name: John Moynahan 
Title:  Chief Financial Officer
 
The foregoing certification is being furnished solely to accompany the Report pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, and is not being filed for purposes of Section 18
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and is not to be incorporated by reference into any filing of the Company, whether made before or after
the date hereof, regardless of any general incorporation language in such filing. 


